
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FEBRUARY 2, 2016                                                               REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  January 19, 2016  CIOFFI                       

                                 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – POWERPOINT PRESENTATION   KRAUSE 

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Executive – January 25, 2016        CIOFFI 
                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                            

  
6. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
   

A. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1126 Confirming and Establishing Accounts  KRIEGER 
  with Union Bank 

 
B. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1127 Amending Credit Card Agreement with  KRIEGER 

First National Bank of Omaha 
 

C. Request Board Action on Claim Submitted by Stephen Breimer  KRAUSE  
     
7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – January 21, 2016  RIDDELL                                                                   
 

8. PUBLIC INFORMATION  KRAUSE 
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 
 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
February 2, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 

    
E. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (2) 

  Potential Case: One (1) 
 
   
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8624 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/19/16 

 

   2 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
January 19, 2016 

 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
  
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Hudgens, Public Information Officer ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer ) 
   
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 
Public: Tom Kieley III, Palm Springs resident ) 
 David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
     

Attendance 

17372.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Vice President Stuart in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17373.  Director Ewing made a motion to add a request to adopt 
Resolution No. 1125 to today’s agenda. After a second by Director Oygar, 
the motion carried unanimously.  
 
17374.  President Cioffi called for approval of the January 5, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Ewing, the minutes were approved as written.  
 
17375.  President Cioffi announced that today is the final Board 
meeting for retiring General Manager Luker, of which he has attended over 
800 Board meetings. He then acknowledged Mr. Luker for his 23 years of 
dedicated service to Desert Water Agency. 
 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Agenda Addendum – 
Adopt Resolution No. 
1125 
 
 
 
Approval of 01/05/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager 
Luker’s Last Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8625 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/19/16 

 
17376.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Luker to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Luker provided updates for the following projects: 1) 
Foothill Reservoir No. 1 and No. 2 work has begun, 2) Southridge 
Reservoir No. 2 interior sand blasting and coating is complete, 3) Cathedral 
City North Reservoir work of interior sand blasting and coating will begin 
on January 18, 4) Andreas Reservoir No. 1 work of interior sand blasting 
and coating will begin on February 15 and exterior sand blasting and 
painting will also begin on February 15, and 5) Palm Oasis Forebay 
Reservoir work interior sand blasting and coating should begin on April 21 
and exterior sand blasting and painting should also begin on April 21. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Luker stated during inspection of 
fire hydrants on Via Escuela (Southeast corner of Via Escuela and Mira 
Vista), staff found the riser for hydrant #1175 was corroded. The hydrant 
riser is scheduled to be replaced on January 15. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Luker stated a claim regarding a 
recent damaged hydrant incident will be brought to the Board for 
consideration at the next meeting. 
 
17377.  President Cioffi read aloud Resolution No. 1125 Granting 
Retirement Status to David K. Luker. 
 
  Director Oygar moved to adopt Resolution No. 1125 Granting 
Retirement Status to David K. Luker. Vice President Stuart seconded the 
motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1125 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 
GRANTING RETIREMENT STATUS TO 

DAVID K. LUKER 
 
17378.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the January 13, 2016 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
  In response to Director Oygar, Mr. Luker stated the Mary 
Pickford retrofit consists of toilets and urinals. 
   
  Responding to Director Oygar, Ms. Hudgens stated that 
rebates for commercial and residential have different criteria; commercial 
properties can be considered for more than two projects, on an as-needed 
basis. Further discussion regarding project criteria will be discussed with 
the Conservation & Public Affairs Committee. 
 
 

General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
2015-2016 Potable 
Water Reservoir 
Maintenance Project 
Updates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fire Hydrant #1175 to 
be Replaced 
 
 
 
 
 
Property Damage Claim  
 
 
 
 
 
Addendum – Adopt 
Resolution No. 1125 
Granting Retirement 
Status to David K. 
Luker 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1125 
Adopted  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports –  
Executive 01/13/16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8626 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/19/16 

 
  President Cioffi stated the discussion on the Cathedral City 
sewer availability is regarding a new project on Palm Canyon across from 
Trader Joe’s. 
 
17379.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  Tom Kieley III, former DWA Board Member stated he was 
on the Board for Mr. Luker’s first meeting as General Manager, and wanted 
to be here today for his last meeting. He then congratulated Mr. Luker on 
his upcoming retirement and thanked him for all that he has done for the 
Agency. 
 
  There being no one else from the public wishing to address 
the Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17380.  President Cioffi asked Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of December 
2015. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating 
Fund received $1,833,807 in Water Sales Revenue, $79,204 in Reclamation 
Sales Revenue, and $81,524 in Advanced Work-Order Deposits. Included 
in the Miscellaneous Receipts is $19,212 from ACWA/JPIA (P.S. Museum 
damage reimbursement) and $9,351 from SCE for Solar Field II Energy 
Rebate for October 2015. $2,229,994 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
Year-to-date Water Sales are 12% over budget, Year-to-date Total 
Revenues are 12% over budget and Year-to-date Expenses are 11% under 
budget. There were 22,166 active services as of December 31, 2015. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer 
stated $4,373,372 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $8,953 was 
received in Groundwater Replenishment Assessments from private 
pumpers. $1,089,530 was paid out in State Water Project Charges and 
$16,869 paid out to ACWA for 2016 Member Dues. 
     
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, $19,007 was received in 
Sewer Capacity Charges. There are a total of 78 sewer contracts with 32 
delinquent (41%). $57,719 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17381.  President Cioffi noted that the 2016 Board Committee 
Assignments reflected changes due to the reorganization of the Board. 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion to approve the 2016 Board 
Committee Assignments. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the 
motion carried unanimously. 
  
 
 

Committee Reports 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
Tom Kieley III 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report – December 
2015 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
Action Item: 
2016 Board Committee 
Assignments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8627 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/19/16 

 
17382.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Luker to report 
on the December Water Use Reduction Figures. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 9.5 percent reduction during December 2015 compared to 
December 2013. He noted that the SWRCB staff has recommended an 8 
percent reduction from the mandatory 36 percent. 
 
17383.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Krause to 
report on the Lake Perris Seismic Remediation Project. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that significant changes since the last report 
on November 5, 2015 for the completed work percentage has progressed 
from 23% to 33%. DWR’s assessment of the excavation hazards near the 
Inlet/Outlet Tower differ from the contractor’s consultant hazard 
assessment. DWR and the contractor are working on a revised plan and 
schedule to complete the left abutment blasting and excavation, which will 
likely require a change order and revised milestones. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause said that the contractor’s 
rock quarry processing plant continues to produce large quantities of 
unsuitable material with the contractor notifying DWR of a potential claim 
due to differing site conditions. Construction during El Niño winter poses 
potential risk due to storm water run-off. CDSM construction is proceeding 
with a 24-hour a day schedule for both rigs to help diminish the risk from 
storm water run-off. 
 
17384.  Vice President Stuart stated he received a telephone call from 
Nancy Wright, MSWD President, who informed him of their Board’s 
reorganization; Nancy Wright, President and Russ Martin, Vice President. 
 
17385.  At 8:40 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of (A) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. 
Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI vs. County of Riverside, 
et al; (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9 (d) (1), DWA vs. U.S. Department of Interior; and (D) Conference 
with Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: David K. 
Luker, General Manager and Mark S. Krause, Assistant General Manager, 
Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA, Under 
Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition. 
  
17386.  At 9:09 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
 

Discussion Items: 
December 2015 Water 
Use Reduction Figures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake Perris Seismic 
Remediation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
MSWD Board 
Reorganization 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior 
D.Conference with Real 
Property Negotiators – 
New Mesquite HOA 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
 



8628 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/19/16 

 
 
17387.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 9:10 a.m.  
 
 

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 
 
 
 
 
 

There is no memo provided 
for this Agenda item: 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S 

REPORT 
 

A video report on  
2015 Capital Improvement Projects 

will be presented 
 

February 2, 2016 
 





6-A 

Board/Staff Rpts/Krieger2016  

 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 2, 2016 

 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1126 CONFIRMING AND 

ESTABLISHING ACCOUNT(S) WITH UNION BANK 
 
 
Due to changes on Desert Water Agency’s Board of Directors and the new General 
Manager and Assistant General Manager, it is necessary to revise the listing of the 
Agency’s designated signers and provide new signature cards for its accounts with 
Union Bank.  In order to accomplish this, Resolution No. 1126 has been prepared. 
 
 
Staff requests adoption of Resolution No. 1126, and approval to submit an updated list 
of signers to Union Bank.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1126 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY CONFIRMING 

THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A 
CHECKING ACCOUNT OR ACCOUNTS WITH UNION BANK 

AND PROVIDING FOR WITHDRAWALS THEREFROM 
 
 WHEREAS, this Board of Directors by previous resolution has established its checking 
accounts with Union Bank (formerly Union Bank of California), and has designated the procedures 
for withdrawal of funds therefrom; and 
 WHEREAS, the Agency desires to change the designation of persons authorized to make 
such withdrawals, 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this Agency maintain its checking accounts 
with the Union Bank, upon terms presently established and in accordance with all provisions of law, 
and that effective the date of this resolution, the following persons: 
 
 James Cioffi    Mark S. Krause 
 Joseph K. Stuart   Martin S. Krieger 
 Patricia G. Oygar   Steven L. Johnson 
 Craig A. Ewing   Lee L. Lahtinen 
 Kristin Bloomer    
 
 be and they are authorized, any two acting together, to withdraw funds from said checking 
accounts by checks, drafts or other items for and on behalf of this Agency.  All checks of the Agency 
bearing the words “PAYROLL CHECK” may be signed by any one of the above named nine 
individuals. 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the authority hereby conferred shall remain in force 
until Union Bank has received notification of the revocation thereof by the Board of Directors of this 
Agency. 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution be transmitted to the 
Bank, and that Resolution No. 1009 of this Agency is hereby rescinded. 

 ADOPTED this 2nd day of February, 2016. 

 

 

      __________________________________ 
      James Cioffi  
ATTEST:     President  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer 
Secretary-Treasurer 



BOARD/STAFF RPTS/KRIEGER/FIRST NATL BANK 
 

6-B 
 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 2, 2016 

 
 

RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1127 AMENDING 
DESERT WATER AGENCY CREDIT CARD AGREEMENT WITH  
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA 

 
Due to changes on Desert Water Agency’s Board of Directors and the new 
General Manager and Assistant General Manager, it is necessary to revise the 
listing of the Agency’s designated signers for First National Bank of Omaha 
 
Staff requests adoption of Resolution No. 1127 and approval to submit an 
updated list of signers to First National Bank of Omaha.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1127 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
AMENDING CREDIT CARD AGREEMENT  

WITH FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA 
 
 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify to First Bank of Omaha (“Bank”) that I am Secretary-Treasurer of 

the Desert Water Agency, located in Palm Springs, California, and that I have been duly elected and 

am presently serving in that capacity.  I further certify that the following resolution has been duly 

adopted by the Board of Directors, or other governing body, of the Corporation and such resolutions 

are in full force and effect as of the date hereof and have not been revoked and rescinded as of this 

date: 

RESOLVED that: 

1. The First National Bank of Omaha Commercial Card Agreement (“Agreement”) is 

approved. 

2. The officials designated below (Authorized Officials”) are authorized to borrow money on 

behalf  and in the name of Desert Water Agency, execute any notes, drafts, agreements and 

other documents and instruments, pledge and encumber property of the Agency (including, 

without limitation, bank accounts), and name the individuals at the Agency who shall be 

authorized to instruct First National Bank of Omaha to issue credit Cards to one or more 

employees of the Agency, and the signatures below are the genuine signatures of such 

persons. 

 
 
Mark S. Krause 

  
General Manager-Chief Engineer 

  

 
 
Steven L. Johnson 

  
 
Assistant General Manager 

  

 
 
Martin Krieger 

  
 
Finance Director 

  

     
 

 

 



Resolution No. 1127 
Page 2 

 
 

3. This resolution shall continue to be in full force and effect until express written notice of its 

rescission, modification or termination has been received by the Bank.  Any and all prior 

resolutions received and certified by the Bank shall continue to have full force and effect 

until the Bank receives such written notice.  Any rescission, modification or termination of a 

resolution must be accompanied by written notification to the Bank. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name to this document and affix the Agency’s 

seal on the 2nd day of February, 2016. 

 

 

      Signed: _________________________________ 
        Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
      
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6-C 

BOARD/STAFF REPORTS/KRAUSE 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 2, 2016 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST BOARD ACTION WITH REGARD TO CLAIM FOR 

DAMAGES FILED BY STEPHEN BREIMER 
  

Attached for the Board’s review is a claim form submitted to the Agency by Mr. 
Stephen Breimer. Mr. Breimer claims the Agency is responsible for property 
damage due to a broken hydrant that caused flooding. 
 
As further investigation will be necessary to determine whether, or to what extent, 
Desert Water Agency may have responsibility, Staff requests that the Board deny 
Mr. Breimer’s claim and instruct Staff to refer the matter to the ACWA Joint 
Powers Insurance Authority claims adjuster for handling and closure.   
 

















































 
January 15, 2016 
 
 
Claim notes by Skip Kuhlman, Assistant Construction Superintendent 
 
 
Re: Block Wall 
 
I don’t know if it makes a difference or not, but I was talking to Brian 
Cochran today and he remembers a gardener being at the location and told 
Brian that the block wall was always leaning. Brian also remembers talking 
to someone who may have been the property manager for 447 Via Escuela 
who also stated that the block wall always leaned. 
 
Re: Vegetation/Herb Garden and Trees 
 
I do remember seeing a box behind the block wall, but it didn’t appear to be 
having anything growing in it. It seemed to be dirt. As far as the vegetation 
and trees, it seemed the only damage was where the block wall came 
down. 
 
Re: Pool 
 
The pool pump was smoking and Brian Cochran turned it off at the pump. 
The pool guys showed up and they turned the power off at the house, to 
the pump. They did say that the pump was smoking. They have turned the 
pump back on to see that, but I’m not sure. 
 
Re: Rolling Gate 
 
I couldn’t say whether the gate was on or off the track. There wasn’t much 
debris or mud by the gate. When the pool guys arrived, they must have 
come through the gate because at that point the gate was open. They 
didn’t say anything to us about the gate being off track. 
 
 



423 W. Via Escuela Water Damage 
12/17/2015 

Stephen Breimer Claim 
1/15/2016 



Aerial of 423 W. Via Escuela  

Fire Hydrant 



Path of Water Flow  

. W Via Escuela Fire Hydrant 



447 W. Via Escuela 
(The Westerly House Next Door) 

Pedestrian Gate Fire Hydrant 



Hydrant Damage 



Inside Pedestrian Gate 
447 W. Via Escuela 



Front Yard 
447 W. Via Escuela 



Erosion of Top Soil 
447 W. Via Escuela 



East Side of 447 W. Via Escuela 
Water was trapped between these two walls  to a 

height indicated by the waterline 
 

Waterline 



Collapse of Wall 
Viewed from 447 W. Via Escuela 

 



Collapse of Wall 
Viewed from 447 W. Via Escuela 

 



Collapsed Wall 
Viewed from 423 Via Escuela 

Note: Cherry trees under collapsed wall 



Pool at 423 Via Escuela 
 



Pool at 423 Via Escuela 
 



Pool Equipment at 423 W. Via Escuela 
 



Pool Equipment at 423 W. Via Escuela 
 



Pool Equipment at 423 W. Via Escuela 
 



Exit Point for Water Runoff 
East Driveway Access Gate 

 



7-A 

01358.00002\24423288.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

January 21, 2016 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: JANUARY 21, 2016 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The January 21, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc., was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento.  

1. Board Action Item. 

The sole action item presented to the SWC Board was authorization for the 

General Manager to send a letter to DWR in support of hiring a consultant to recalculate pricing 

reports for bonds issued by DWR.  In 1999, Metropolitan Water District filed a claim that the 

charges imposed by DWR to pay debt service on Water System Revenue Bonds had been 

miscalculated.  The errors resulted from DWR’s conversion of its reporting system in 1999, and 

involved 47 series of bonds that had been issued by DWR since that time.  DWR agrees that the 

pricing reports have not been calculated correctly, and wishes to hire a consultant to help 

recalculate the reports correctly.  DWR was seeking support from the Contractors for that 

expenditure, expected to be approximately $132,000.  The Board adopted a motion authorizing 

the General Manager to send a letter to DWR in support of that proposal. 

2. Water Supply Report. 

John Leahigh from DWR provided a very positive report regarding improvements 

in the State’s water supply.  The Project is off to a very good year in terms of total precipitation, 

but John cautioned that there is a very large hole to climb out of.  The water shed was very dry 

following multiple years of drought and soaked up much of the precipitation that occurred early 

on, producing low runoff.  In addition, much of the precipitation was in the form of snow, also 

producing little immediate runoff.  However, with the soil reaching saturation, the runoff figures 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\24423288.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

were beginning to improve and were producing increased storage in the reservoirs.  As of the 

date of the meeting, the storage at Oroville was at 1.2 million acre-feet.  Diversions from the 

Delta (both State and Federal) were at 4,500 cubic feet per second.  Salinity stopped being a 

problem in the Delta in early January, and outflow from the Delta as of the date of the meeting 

was at 42,000 cfs.  Storage in the San Luis Reservoir was also increasing, and the CVP 

Contractors had repaid all of the debt owed to the SWP Contractors.  In the Northern Sierra, total 

precipitation was at 114% of average to date, with another storm system scheduled to arrive the 

very next day.  John reported that total precipitation in the Northern Sierra had just recently 

surpassed the total precipitation the previous year.  Furthermore, climatologists expect storms to 

continue to accumulate in the Pacific and bring additional precipitation to California.  In the San 

Joaquin basin, precipitation thus far has been remarkably better than last year, and was at 122% 

of average as of the date of the meeting.  In the Tulare basin, precipitation was at 118% of 

average to date.  The snow pack in the Northern Sierra was at 125% of average, well better than 

last year.  The snow pack was also pretty good in the Central Sierra, but lagging somewhat in the 

Southern Sierra.  As of the date of the meeting, storage in Lake Oroville was at 54% of average, 

storage in Shasta was at 60% of average, and storage in Folsom Reservoir had improved 

remarkably. 

 3. Energy Report. 

It was reported that the energy markets have continued to decline due to a decline 

in the commodity markets.  Energy costs were down 40% compared to last year due to an 

oversupply of gas.  A similar trend occurred with respect to the price of oil, which was less than 

$30 per barrel as of the date of the meeting.  A lot of restructuring has occurred in the energy 

sector, with 42 companies having filed for bankruptcy.  The restructuring is expected to continue 

until the markets rebalance, probably in the second half of 2017.  Hydropower generation 

continued to be less than projected. 

4. Pool 30 Aqueduct Repair. 

A major leak was discovered Pool 30 of the California Aqueduct, near the Buena 

Vista pumping plant, requiring significant repair.  DWR field personnel observed a “boil” in the 

aqueduct on Saturday, January 2, which was first estimated to result in water loss at the rate of 2 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\24423288.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

to 3 cfs.  By January 3 (Sunday), the seep had increased to a flow of 4 cfs.  DWR isolated the 

pool and began drawing it down at the rate of 1 1/2 feet per day, which was the maximum 

allowed rate of draw down.  By January 5, the flow from the leak had increased to 5 cfs.  By 

January 6th, the aqueduct had been sufficiently dewatered to allow DWR personnel to observe 

the opening in the lining.  DWR immediately ordered three loads of grout, which stopped the 

leak.  As the pool was further dewatered, however, DWR observed other areas in the pool that 

were extremely distressed and in need of repair.  As of the date of the meeting, the plan was to 

remove approximately 900 feet of the aqueduct lining in that area, and replace it.  One challenge 

was to excavate sufficient material to finally reach competent material that would be suitable for 

refilling and recompacting behind the aqueduct liner.  DWR determined that the problem had not 

been caused by subsidence, but instead was probably caused by a high percentage of gypsum in 

the soil behind the liner, which dissolves upon contact with water resulting in loss of support for 

the aqueduct panels.  The plan was to have the pool back online on February 10.  Safety has been 

a large concern at the site, as traffic had to be restricted in order to perform the reconstruction 

work.  The anticipated cost of the repair was not yet known, but was expected to be in the range 

of maybe $8 million or $9 million.  

5. Legislative Report.  

Both houses of the State Legislature returned from recess on January 4.  The 

deadline date for submitting bills is February 19.  At this point, spot bills are being introduced 

without any text, and therefore it is too soon to know what bills will be of concern to the 

Contractors.  Governor Brown has released his proposed budget, which includes $3.1 billion in 

“cap and trade” revenue.  The budget proposes the use of $323 million in funds for response to 

the drought.   

6. CalWaterFix Workshop. 

The State Water Contractors will be presenting an all day workshop on 

CalWaterFix in Sacramento on Tuesday, February 2, 2016.  The workshop will present a “high 

level” review suitable for an audience which includes General Managers and members of the 

governing boards of the Contractors.   

 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\24423288.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

7. Business Process Objectives.  

A report was provided regarding progress in addressing business process 

objectives for the year.  A copy of that report is attached to this memo.  Items of note included 

the upcoming State Water Contract amendments to provide for the extension of the Contracts, 

and also to provide for the improvements in the Delta.  With regard to the amendments on the 

Contract extension, the legal team is working on language for the proposed amendment, which 

will become available soon.  With respect to the Contract amendment for CalWaterFix, the 

Contractors’ objectives have been to secure enhanced water management capability and to 

provide for the allocation of costs, while DWR’s objective has been to ensure continued financial 

security for operation of the State Water Project.  Other objectives identified in the report include 

the formation and implementation of the SWRDS Finance Committee, the development of a 

capital risk management strategy, the debt service reconciliation project (previously discussed) to 

deal with approximately $120 million in overcharges on revenue bond debt service calculations, 

and execution of the sixth amendment to the tolling agreement for claims submitted on past 

DWR invoices. 

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 













Ending At Midnight - January 27, 2016

Graph Updated 01/28/2016 07:45 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
27% | 38%

Shasta Reservoir
49% | 73%

Lake Oroville
39% | 61%

Folsom Lake
42% | 82%

New Melones
16% | 27%

Don Pedro Reservoir
39% | 58%

Exchequer Reservoir
13% | 27%

San Luis Reservoir
32% | 41%

Millerton Lake
39% | 62%

Perris Lake
36% | 45%

Castaic Lake
35% | 43%

Pine Flat Reservoir
19% | 41%


















































































































	02 02 16 Board Agenda
	Item 2 01 19 16 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 GM Memo - Video Presentation
	Item 4 01 25 16 Executive Comm Minutes
	Item 6A 02 02 16 Res 1126 New Sigs Union Bank
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ADPBC13.tmp
	OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY CONFIRMING


	Item 6B 02 02 16 Res 1127 Amend Credit Card Agmt First Natl Bank staff report
	Item 6C 02 02 16 Deny Damage Claim-Breimer2
	ADP836A.tmp
	423 W. Via Escuela Water Damage�12/17/2015
	Aerial of 423 W. Via Escuela 
	Path of Water Flow 
	447 W. Via Escuela�(The Westerly House Next Door)
	Hydrant Damage
	Inside Pedestrian Gate�447 W. Via Escuela
	Front Yard�447 W. Via Escuela
	Erosion of Top Soil�447 W. Via Escuela
	East Side of 447 W. Via Escuela�Water was trapped between these two walls  to a height indicated by the waterline�
	Collapse of Wall�Viewed from 447 W. Via Escuela�
	Collapse of Wall�Viewed from 447 W. Via Escuela�
	Collapsed Wall�Viewed from 423 Via Escuela�Note: Cherry trees under collapsed wall
	Pool at 423 Via Escuela�
	Pool at 423 Via Escuela�
	Pool Equipment at 423 W. Via Escuela�
	Pool Equipment at 423 W. Via Escuela�
	Pool Equipment at 423 W. Via Escuela�
	Exit Point for Water Runoff�East Driveway Access Gate�


	Item 7A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEC  16 2015 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c1
	ADP9C12.tmp
	UMEMORANDUM
	1. UBoard Action Item.
	2. UWater Supply Report.


	Item 8A 02 02 16 PI Media
	Item 8B 02 02 16 PI Activities

